
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Graham

AGENDA February 03, 2016

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Graham

Presentation Commissioner Randy Fairbanks will honor JROTC Cadets Trever Henegar, Zachary Shankles
and Ryan DesJarlais for their heroism in saving a fellow Cadet from drowning.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - January 13, 2016

Minutes Agenda Session - January 13, 2016

Minutes Regular Meeting - January 20, 2016

Report Trustee Monthly Report - December 2015

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report - December 2015

Report Juvenile Court Clerk's Report - October and November 2015

Report Report of Investment Activity for Quarter Ending 12/31/15

Report Fee Office Reports for Quarter Ended 12/31/15

Res. No. 216-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the bonds and oaths
of notaries previously elected, and oaths of Deputy Sheriffs.

Res. No. 216-2 A Resolution to decrease the expenditure budget for the Juvenile Court Judge by $32,369.00,
and increase the expenditure budget for the Sheriff by $32,369.00.

Res. No. 216-3 A Resolution to amend the Schools Federal Projects Fund budget by adding $2,969,406 to the
FY 2015-2016 revenue and expenditure budget; to amend the Self-funded Projects Fund budget
by adding $683,027 to the FY 2015-2016 revenue and expenditure budget; to amend the
General Purpose Fund budget by adding $2,634,810 to the FY 2015-2016 revenue and
expenditure budget.

Res. No. 216-4 A Resolution making an appropriation to Birchwood Regional Centre in the amount of five
thousand nine hundred dollars ($5,900.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted
to District Nine.

Res. No. 216-5 A Resolution making an appropriation to Soddy Daisy Vietnam Veterans Foundation in the
amount of Five Hundred Dollars ($500) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to
District One.

Res. No. 216-6 A Resolution making an appropriation to Collegedale Tomorrow Foundation, Inc., in the amount
of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to
District Seven.

Res. No. 216-7 A Resolution making an appropriation to Front Porch Alliance in the amount of five thousand
dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District Four.

Res. No. 216-8 A Resolution making an appropriation to A Night to Remember, Inc., in the amount of three
thousand dollars ($3,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Four.

Res. No. 216-9 A Resolution making an appropriation to Partnership for Families, Children and Adults, Inc., in
the amount of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) from Geneal Fund discretionary
monies, as allotted to District Eight.

Res. No. 216-10 A Resolution accepting the bid of Southeastern Communications Services, Inc. for installation,
termination, testing, programming and certification of a Bogen Quantum Intercom System at
Ganns Middle Valley Elementary School amounting to $30,194.45 for the Telecommunications
Department and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement
this Resolution.



Res. No. 216-11 A Resolution to accept the proposal of CIGNA Health and Life Insurance Company to provide
Group Health Plan Administration for Hamilton County and to authorize the County Mayor to
sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 216-12 A Resolution to accept the proposal of BB&T/Huffaker Insurance to provide umbrella liability
insurance coverage for Hamilton County and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 216-13 A Resolution amending the 2004 Interlocal Agreement between Hamilton County and the
Hamilton County Board of Education relative to the construction of school facilities; authorizing
the presentation of said amended agreement to the Hamilton County Board of Education for
consideration for and approval; and authorizing the County Mayor to execute said amended
agreement when, and if, so approved.

Res. No. 216-14 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a contract amendment with the Tennessee Department of Health to provide Family
Planning Services to residents of Hamilton County and increase the expense and revenue
budget by $18,400.00.

Res. No. 216-15 A Resolution endorsing the proposal to name a United State Naval Ship "The USS
Chattanooga" in honor of the heroic efforts of those involved in the Chattanooga incident of July
16, 2015.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  January 13, 2016 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 13th day of January, 2016, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. Deputy 

Clerk Brooke Weaver called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston. Total present – 9.  Total absent -0. 

 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Haynes introduced Pastor Bruce Sloan, Ridgeview Baptist 

Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Haynes introduced Liberty Barnum, 

Little Miss Tennessee Wheelchair, who led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

1 
 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 

Chairman Bankston announced that there was not any scheduled business for 

the Recessed Meeting and asked if anyone had any announcements. 

 

 Commissioner Beck stated that he has not received the list of schools that will be 

receiving upgrades from the Department of Education. During the December 30, 2015 

Agenda Session Commissioner Beck asked Chairman Bankston to assist him with 

requesting a list of immediate priorities the HCDE has that involve spending money. It 

was noted that Commissioner Beck requested the list over a year ago.  

 

 Chairman Bankston responded and stated that the school board has to put the 

list together and he will request it from them, in person, at their next meeting this week.  

 

 Commissioner Mackey stated that over half of the money collected in property 

taxes in Hamilton County is directed to the school board. He added that the 

Commission should develop a plan of action in regards to obtaining the list from the 

school board. 

 

2 
 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 

 
 Being no further business Chairman Bankston declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

      

      Respectfully submitted: 

 
      
      _______________________________ 
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

 

Approved: 

 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 

3 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  January 13, 2016 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 13th day of January, 2016, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. Deputy 

Clerk Brooke Weaver called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston.  Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 

 

 1 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered 

as follows: 

• The Criminal Court Clerk’s report for November 2015 would be submitted for the 
record.  

• An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

• The report on Debt Obligation would be submitted for the record.  
• Resolution No. 116-17 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  

This required no committee assignment. 
• Resolution Nos. 116-18, 116-19A, and 116-19B were assigned to the Zoning 

Committee, chaired by Commissioner Haynes. 
• Resolutions Nos. 116-34 through 116-42 were assigned to the Finance 

Committee, chaired by Commissioner Boyd. 
• Resolutions Nos. 116-20 through 116-33 were heard by a Committee of the 

Whole. 
 
 
 Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, announced that the 

Zoning Committee would be meeting in the Conference Room immediately following the 

Agenda Session.  

 

 Chairman Bankston stated that Resolutions Nos. 116-20 through 116-33 would 

now be heard by the Committee of the Whole.  

 

 

 

 2 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-20 

 

This Resolution reappoints Patricia Moore as an associate member to the 

Hamilton County Board of Zoning Appeals for a term ending January 20, 2021.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-21 

 

 Commissioner Haynes spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $29,500.00 

to Dallas Bay Volunteer Fire Department from general fund discretionary monies and 

discretionary bond fund monies as allotted to District 3. It was noted that the fire 

department expanded their medical coverage area, and the funds will assist with the 

purchase of a medical service truck. Commissioner Haynes reported that last year’s 

discretionary bond monies and this year’s unused travel fund monies will be used.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 

 3 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-22 

  

 Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this item, which approves the expenditure 

of up to $4,000 to purchase lab equipment for Harrison Elementary School from last 

year’s discretionary bond funds as allotted to District 9.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-23 

 

 Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $750.00 to 

Junior Achievement of Chattanooga, Inc. from general fund discretionary monies, as 

allotted to District 9. It was noted that the funds will assist the non-profit with their Spirit 

of Achievement Awards Luncheon.  

  

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 

 

 4 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-24 

 

 Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $3,500.00 

to Psi Lambda Educational Foundation, Inc. from general fund discretionary monies, as 

allotted to District 4. It was noted that funds will assist the non-profit with youth 

development and educational opportunities.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-25 

  

 Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $2,000.00 

to Ancient Egyptian Arabic Order Nobles Mystic Shrine, Inc. Hyksos Temple #123 from 

general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 4. It was noted that the funds 

will assist non-profit with youth development and educational opportunities.  

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 

 5 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-26 

 

 Development Director Dan Saieed spoke regarding this item, which authorizes 

the County Mayor to apply for a $200,528.00 Clean Energy Grant sponsored by the 

Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC). The funds will assist 

with the purchase of a lighting system upgrade in the Courts Building that is estimated 

to cost $417,426.00, which includes a county match of $216,898.00 in bond funds. It 

was noted that the deadline to apply for the grant is January 29, 2016, and if approved 

the County savings is estimated to be $63,621.00 in annual energy costs; the system 

will pay for itself in 3.7 years. Mr. Saieed added that the current T12 fluorescent 

lightbulbs will be upgraded to T8 fluorescent bulbs that will last seven years longer and 

are programmable to be turned off if not in use.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Haynes questions, Mr. Saieed explained that the 

upgrades will be for both internal and external lights.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Mr. Saieed stated that 

Campbell and Associates prepared the estimates and suggested the T8 fluorescent 

bulbs over the T5 bulbs. He added that he would report back with more information from 

the engineering firm regarding the choice of T8 over T5 bulbs.  

 

 6 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-27 

 

 Charles Wood, Vice President of Economic Development for Chattanooga Area 

Chamber of Commerce, spoke regarding this item, which makes certain findings 

relating to the Yanfeng US Automotive Interior Systems I LLC Project, to delegate 

certain authority to the Industrial Development Board of the City of Chattanooga, and to 

authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute an agreement for payments in lieu 

of ad valorum taxes (PILOT). The PILOT agreement is for personal property tax and 

does not affect real estate taxes on the plant site. Yanfeng will be located near 

Volkswagen (VW) in the former Tennessee Enterprises Building in Bonnyshire Industrial 

Park on Bonnyshire Drive. The manufacturer will supply interior components including 

floor consoles, instrument panels and trunk trim for future VW models.  

 

Mr. Wood stated that this project would be a $48 million investment for 

equipment for the facility, and create 325 jobs with average wages of $50,000 per year 

before benefits. He added that the County will see about $600,000 in general fund 

revenues over the course of the PILOT, and generate about $1.2 million in new school 

taxes over the course of the PILOT.  

 

Mr. Wood stated that Tom Zhu, Project Manager of Yanfeng Chattanooga Facility 

was not able to attend today’s meeting, but he will be present at next week’s meeting. 

 7 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

 In response to Commissioner Fields question, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor 

added that his office has been actively involved in this project, and they are satisfied 

with the terms of the PILOT.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Smedley’s questions, Mr. Woods explained that 

the project will create 325 jobs over the course of three years. Attorney Taylor 

confirmed that his office is satisfied with the claw-back provisions if requirements for the 

PILOT are not met.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Fairbanks question, the $1.2 million in new school 

taxes will be paid out over a 14-year period. He added that there will be an immediate 

pay in to the schools and the general fund as soon as the project comes up on the 

Assessor’s tax roll.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Haynes question, Mr. Woods noted that the 

Assessor’s time frame typically coincides with the calendar year.  

 

Mayor Coppinger acknowledged the hard work that Mr. Woods and Mark Smith 

with Miller & Martin put into this project. It was noted that the project was developed 

over a three-year period.  

 

 8 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

 Mr. Woods thanked Mayor Coppinger for his participation in making the project 

possible.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Mr. Woods noted that he 

would report back to the Commission with the amount of current tax revenue being 

received on the property. He added that the estimated tax revenue for schools in the 

first year would be approximately $200,000, that’s in addition to what they receive now.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-28 

 

 Todd Leamon, Administrator of Public Works and County Engineer, spoke 

regarding this item, which establishes the minimum bid amount for certain parcels of 

property acquired by Hamilton County through delinquent tax sales, authorizes the offer 

of said parcels for sale at that minimum bid amount, and authorizes certain said parcels 

to be offered for sale for an amount less than the total amount of taxes, penalty, cost, 

and interest accumulated against the property. He noted this is same process the 

County goes through every year with back tax properties. He added that there are 146 

parcels in the current sale.  

 

 9 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

 In response to Commissioner Smedley’s questions, Mr. Leamon explained that 

he would report back to the Commission with more accurate details regarding the 

properties being reassessed and put back on the tax rolls.   

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-29 

 

 This Resolution authorizes the County Mayor to enter into an agreement with 

Moreland Altobelli Associates, Inc. for construction and special inspection testing 

necessary for construction of the Nolan Elementary School addition for an amount not 

to exceed $48,191.50 of previously budgeted funds.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Mr. Leamon noted the 

Commission approved the construction contract for Nolan Elementary School in 

December 2015 (Resolution No. 1215-14). He reported there are no additional school 

construction projects in the works. Nolan Elementary and Wolftever Elementary were 

the last two schools on the list (Resolution No. 314-28A).  

  

In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Mr. Leamon explained that the 

engineering firms are solicited from a list of approved Geotechnical firms (Resolution 

No. 615-12), and then selected internally for completion of the project. Commissioner 

Boyd noted that the process was a very efficient design.   

 10 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-30 

 

 Todd Leamon, Administrator of Public Works and County Engineer spoke 

regarding this item, which authorizes the County Mayor to submit an application to the 

Tennessee Department of Transportation (TDOT) and to the Tennessee Department of 

Environment and Conservation (TDEC) for an amount not to exceed $1,250,000.00, 

which includes a required matching contribution not to exceed $125,000.00 to fund 

replacement of seven outdated heavy equipment trucks for the Hamilton County 

Highway Department. He added that this will allow the County to submit two separate 

grants in which TDOT Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ) 

Grant will provide 80% of the total cost, TDEC Clean Energy Tennessee Grant will 

provide 10% of the total cost, and the County will provide 10% of the total cost.   

 

 In response to Commissioner Haynes question, Mr. Leamon explained that the 

CMAQ Grant is more likely to be approved because of the air quality emissions testing 

in the area.  

 

 

 

 

 

 11 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-31 

 

 Todd Leamon spoke regarding this item, which allows the Hamilton County 

Building Commissioner (by and through the Director of Building Inspection) to collect a 

$100.00 fee associated with a new application for the Board of Zoning Appeals public 

hearing. He added that this Resolution will raise the fee from $50.00 to $100.00 which 

will cover all of the costs associated with most cases. It was noted that the $100 fee is 

more consistent with other application fees.  

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-32 

 

 Todd Leamon spoke regarding this item, which authorizes the County Mayor to 

enter into an agreement with GeoServices, LLC for construction and special inspection 

testing necessary for construction of the Wolftever Creek Elementary School addition 

for an amount not to exceed $51,869.50 of previously budgeted funds. 

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners.  

  

 

 12 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 116-33 

 

 Sheriff Jim Hammond spoke regarding this item, which accepts the bid of Ford of 

Murfreesboro for model year contract unit pricing for police pursuit utility vehicles for 

Hamilton County. He noted that this will allow the Sheriff’s Department to add vehicles 

to their fleet to replace vehicles they are retiring.  

 

 Sheriff Hammond introduced Captain Lynn Triplett to answer any questions.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Captain Triplett explained that 

the police pursuit vehicle to be added to the fleet is the Ford Police Interceptor 2. He 

noted that this vehicle is the trend for police departments nationwide. Commissioner 

Graham expressed his concerns of replacing the Sheriff’s Office fleet with SUVs 

including fuel costs and safety. It was noted the Police Interceptor 2 costs $26,251.00 

per vehicle, about $3,000 more than what is currently in the fleet. Captain Triplett added 

that the Sheriff’s Office is constantly trying to find the best vehicle option for officers for 

the price, and there are currently eight vehicles of this type being utilized by the 

department.  

 

 Sheriff Hammond explained the level of difficulty officers face when trying to fit 

gear and equipment in their current vehicles. It is not feasible to run back and forth to 

 13 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

the station to pick up additional gear, especially given the large size of the Sheriff’s 

Department patrol area.  

 

 Commissioner Fairbanks spoke about the overwhelming positive feedback he 

has received from officers currently driving the new SUV vehicles.   

 

 In response to Commissioner Field’s question, Captain Triplett explained that the 

price of the vehicle does not include outfitting it with necessary equipment, such as 

lights, cameras and radio. It was noted that it would cost approximately $8,000 to 

$10,000 to outfit the vehicles with the necessary equipment.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Haynes’ question, Captain Triplett reported that the 

SUV vehicles do not have a Wi-Fi feature included. Commissioner Haynes reported that 

he has also received positive feedback about the vehicles.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Graham’s questions about the availability of the 

Chevy Impala, Captain Triplett noted that the dealerships who work with the Sheriff’s 

Office no longer offer the option to order the Chevy Impala.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, announced the 

Finance Committee will meet in the Commission Room after the Agenda Session.  

 14 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission.  

 

Several Commissioners sent their condolences to Tennessee Senate Speaker 

Pro Tempore Bo Watson and his family for the passing of his father, Foy Walton 

Watson, Jr, who passed away last weekend.  

 

Commissioner Haynes spoke about the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement 

System (TCRS) meeting that took place yesterday at the West Annex as a follow up to 

Sheriff’s Office proposed Bridge Plan. He thanked Mayor Coppinger, Sheriff Hammond, 

and Captain Triplett for their work on the Bridge Plan.  

 

Commissioner Mackey thanked Mayor Coppinger for his presentation at the 

Bridge Plan meeting yesterday.  

 

Commissioner Graham also spoke about the Bridge Plan meeting and thanked 

Mayor Coppinger for his presentation. He noted they would be meeting again this 

evening to discuss the plan further. He added that he still has concerns about how the 

Bridge Plan will be funded.  

 15 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

Commissioner Fields spoke about the washout at Robert’s Mill Road on 

Christmas Day, and thanked Mayor Coppinger and Todd Leamon for fixing the road 

quickly and without an amendment to the budget.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks also thanked Mayor Coppinger and Todd Leamon for 

their quick work on the washout of a road in Sale Creek.  

 

Commissioner Smedley thanked Mayor Coppinger for the Bridge Plan meeting. 

She also thanked Todd Leamon for his staff’s work on the Ooltewah-Ringgold Road and 

Standifer Gap Road roundabout.  

 

Mayor Coppinger praised Todd Leamon and all of the Highway Department for 

their hard work. He also spoke about Human Services Administrator Don Allen’s 

upcoming retirement and announced that there would be a reception in the Rotunda 

immediately following next week’s meeting. He thanked Mr. Allen for his 37 years of 

service. Mayor Coppinger also thanked Sheriff Hammond, Captain Triplett, 

Administrator of Human Resources Alecia Poe, and members of Finance for the 

information they provided at the Bridge Plan meeting.  

 

 

 16 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

Mayor Coppinger announced that on January 19th at 9:00 am, a workshop for 

Commissioners regarding Hamilton County’s health insurance contract will take place at 

the McDaniel Building. The county’s current health insurance contract with Cigna will 

expire July 1st, 2016, Blue Cross Blue Shield (BCBS) and Cigna have submitted bids for 

consideration.   

 

Chairman Bankston thanked county staff for their hard work and due diligence 

before presenting items to the commission. He also invited members of the Commission 

and audience to attend the 26th Tennessee Sandhill Crane Festival in Birchwood at the 

Hiwassee Refuge and at the Birchwood Community Center on January 16th and 17th.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 17 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

JANUARY 13, 2016 
 
 

Being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting adjourned 

until Wednesday, January 20th at 9:30 AM. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 
Approved: 
        

__________   
Date      Clerk’s Initials 

 18 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  January 20, 2016 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 20th day of January, 2016, a Regular 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Bankston. 

Commissioner Mackey was in the office and arrived moments after the roll was called. 

Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 

1 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
Commissioner Boyd introduced Pastor Reverend William Jacques, Crosspath 

Church, who gave the invocation. Commissioner Boyd reported that Reverend Jacques 

is a new resident of Hamilton County and resides in District 7. Commissioner Boyd led 

in the pledge to the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fields, that the 

minutes of the Recessed Meeting of December 30, 2015, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of December 30, 2015, and the Regular Meeting of January 6, 2016, be 

approved, treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing Motion 

was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston asked that the following reports be filed. Clerk Knowles 

confirmed the request. 

 

 

2 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
CRIMINAL COURT CLERK REPORT 

  

The Criminal Court Clerk report for November 2015 was submitted and made a 

matter of record. 

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

 An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting January 

11, 2016.  

 

REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION 

 

 The report on debt obligation was submitted and made a matter of record.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-17  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, AND THE BONDS AND 

OATHS OF NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-17. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

3 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 116-18, 116-19A, and 116-19B 

be considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-18 A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT TO 0-1 OFFICE DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

6143 OOLTEWAH-GEORGETOWN ROAD. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-19A  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM C-2 LOCAL 

BUSINESS COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO R-3 APARTMENT-TOWNHOUSE 

DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2139 CUMMINGS HIGHWAY. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-19B  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM C-2 LOCAL 

BUSINESS COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO R-3 APARTMENT-TOWNHOUSE 

DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2139 CUMMINGS HIGHWAY. 

  

 

4 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-18. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Haynes provided details regarding Resolution Nos. 116-19A and 

Resolution No. 116-19B and stated that the Zoning Committee recommended approval 

of Resolution No. 116-19B, which includes certain conditions recommended by the 

Regional Planning Commission.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-19B. 

 

Chairman Bankston asked if there was any opposition present at today’s 

meeting. There was none.  

 

In response to Commissioner Mackey’s question, Albert Kiser, Administrator of 

Finance, reported that the Finance Department would need to look into what the 

5 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
property appraisals are to know if an increase in property taxes for the County would 

take place.  

 

Commissioner Graham added that permanent townhomes, to be made available 

as weekend rentals, are to be built on the property, which will increase the property’s 

assessed value.  

 

In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Attorney Taylor stated that in 

an effort to ensure the enforcement of the Hotel-Motel Occupancy Tax, upon approval 

of the rezoning, the applicant is encouraged to apply for a Hamilton County Business 

License in the County Clerk’s office. It was stated, that going forward, this would be the 

procedure for new business applications for commercial/short-term vacation rental 

businesses. After obtaining a business license, the County Clerk’s office will notify the 

County Trustee’s office.  

 

Commissioner Graham noted that the Hotel-Motel Occupancy Tax benefits all 

municipalities throughout Hamilton County and the City of Chattanooga.  

 

Commissioner Haynes confirmed that there was no opposition to this item at the 

Planning Commission meeting or at last week’s Agenda Session.  

 

6 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Planning Commission Director 

John Bridger explained the use of the property is classified as a short-term vacation 

rental, which can only be within R-3 and R-4 districts.  

 

Attorney Taylor encouraged the applicant to apply for a Hamilton County 

Business License before he leaves the courthouse today.  

 

The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston reported that Resolution Nos. 116-20 through 116-33 were 

heard by a Committee of the Whole.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-20  A RESOLUTION TO REAPPOINT PATRICIA MOORE AS 

AN ASSOCIATE MEMBER TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF ZONING 

APPEALS FOR A TERM ENDING JANUARY 20, 2021. 

 

7 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
 This Resolution reappoints Patricia Moore as an associate member to the 

Hamilton County Board of Zoning Appeals for a term ending January 20, 2021.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-20. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-21  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

DALLAS BAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT OF 

TWENTY NINE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($29,500.00) FROM 

GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES AND DISCRETIONARY BOND FUND 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT THREE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-21. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

8 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-22  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF 

UP TO FOUR THOUSAND DOLLARS ($4,000.00) FROM DISCRETIONARY BOND 

FUNDS (AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE) TO PURCHASE LAB EQUIPMENT 

FOR HARRISON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-22. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-23  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

JUNIOR ACHIEVEMENT OF CHATTANOOGA, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF SEVEN 

9 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($750.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-23. The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-24  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO PSI 

LAMBDA EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATION, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF THREE 

THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($3,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 

DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-24. The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

10 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-25  A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

ANCIENT EGYPTIAN ARABIC ORDER NOBLES MYSTIC SHRINE, INC., HYKSOS 

TEMPLE #123, IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 

FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT 

FOUR. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-25. The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-26  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO APPLY FOR A $200,528 CLEAN ENERGY GRANT SPONSORED BY THE 

TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION THAT 

11 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
WILL HELP PAY FOR A LIGHTING SYSTEM UPGRADE IN THE COURTS 

BUILDING THAT IS ESTIMATED TO COST $417,426. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-26. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-27  A RESOLUTION TO MAKE CERTAIN FINDINGS 

RELATING TO THE YANFENG U.S. AUTOMOTIVE INTERIOR SYSTEMS I LLC 

PROJECT, TO DELEGATE CERTAIN AUTHORITY TO THE INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF THE CITY OF CHATTANOOGA AND TO AUTHORIZE 

THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR 

PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXES. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-27. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

12 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-28  A RESOLUTION (1) ESTABLISHING THE MINIMUM BID 

AMOUNT FOR CERTAIN PARCELS OF PROPERTY ACQUIRED BY HAMILTON 

COUNTY THROUGH PREVIOUS DELINQUENT TAX SALES. (2) AUTHORIZING THE 

OFFER OF SAID PARCELS FOR SALE AT THAT MINIMUM BID AMOUNT, AND (3) 

AUTHORIZING CERTAIN SAID PARCELS TO BE OFFERED FOR SALE FOR AN 

AMOUNT LESS THAN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF TAXES, PENALTY, COST AND 

INTEREST ACCUMULATED AGAINST THE PROPERTY. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-28. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

13 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 116-29  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH MORELAND ALTOBELLI 

ASSOCIATES, INC FOR CONSTRUCTION AND SPECIAL INSPECTION TESTING 

NECESSARY FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE NOLAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

ADDITION FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $48,191.50 OF PREVIOUSLY 

BUDGETED FUNDS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-29.  

 

In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Chairman Bankston stated that he 

has not received a response from the Hamilton County Department of Education 

(HCDE) regarding the letter he sent to them requesting a list and timeline of upcoming 

school projects.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Nay”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. 

Commissioner Beck abstained from voting.  Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total 

“Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 1. Total abstentions – 1.  

14 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 116-30  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION (TDOT) AND TO THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF 

ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION (TDEC) FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED $1,250,000, WHICH INCLUDES A REQUIRED MATCHING CONTRIBUTION 

NOT TO EXCEED $125,000, TO FUND REPLACEMENT OF OUTDATED HEAVY 

EQUIPMENT FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-30.  

 

In response to Commissioner Haynes question, Administrator of Public Works 

and County Engineer Todd Leamon reported that Hamilton County’s non-attainment 

status and vehicle emission testing program makes it a more competitive candidate for 

receiving the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ) grant.  

 

In response to Commissioner Graham’s question regarding funding for the 

County’s $125,000 required contribution, Mayor Coppinger reported that it would come 

from bond funds.  

 

 

15 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-31  A RESOLUTION ALLOWING THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

BUILDING COMMISSIONER (BY AND THROUGH THE DIRECTOR OF BUILDING 

INSPECTION) TO COLLECT A ONE HUNDRED DOLLAR ($100) FEE ASSOCIATED 

WITH A NEW APPLICATION FOR THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS PUBLIC 

HEARING. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-31. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

16 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 116-32  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH GEOSERVICES, LLC FOR 

CONSTRUCTION AND SPECIAL INSPECTION TESTING NECESSARY FOR THE 

CONSTRUCTION OF THE WOLFTEVER CREEK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

ADDITION FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $51,869.00 OF PREVIOUSLY 

BUDGETED FUNDS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-32. The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Nay”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Commissioner Beck abstained from voting. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 7.  Total “Nay” votes – 1. Total abstentions – 1.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-33  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF FORD OF 

MURFREESBORO FOR MODEL YEAR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING FOR POLICE 

PURSUIT UTILITY VEHICLES FOR HAMILTON COUNTY AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

17 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-33.  

 

In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Sheriff Jim Hammond reported 

that his office has done exhaustive research and determined that the Ford Police 

Interceptor 2 SUV is the best-suited vehicle for his department.  

 

Commissioner Graham stated that he has concerns about replacing the fleet with 

SUVs, the safety of the officers, as well as the higher cost per vehicle. He reported that 

he took a ride in one of the SUVs with a City of Chattanooga Officer last week. He 

added he would be supporting this item out of respect for the Sheriff’s Department 

despite his reservations.  

 

In response to Commissioner Haynes question, Captain Lynn Triplett confirmed 

that there are eight (8) SUVs currently being utilized in the department, and no issues 

have been found. He added that the 2016 Ford Police Interceptor 2 SUV was tested 

using a J-Turn maneuver test and passed without issue.  

 

Captain Triplett corrected a statement he made at last week’s meeting 

concerning the ordering of the Chevy Impala for the Sheriff’s Department. He reported 

that there was a two-week period between January 5th and January 14th that the 

18 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
vehicle was available for order, and he was not made aware until the ordering period 

was closed.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the 

following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 116-34 through 116-42 be 

considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-34  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE QUOTATION OF 

DATAWORKS PLUS, LLC FOR SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT FOR 

THE LIVESCAN PLUS SYSTEM AMOUNTING TO $35,656.00 FOR THE SHERIFF'S 

OFFICE AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 

19 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 116-35  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A STATE OF 

TENNESSEE, GOVERNOR'S HIGHWAY SAFETY OFFICE GRANT FOR THE 

"REMOVE INTOXICATED AND IMPAIRED DRIVERS" PROJECT WITH A TERM 

ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND AMENDING THE SHERIFF'S OFFICE 

OPERATING BUDGET BY ADDING $74,997 TO REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-36  A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE, 

DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY, TENNESSEE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

AGENCY AND HAMILTON COUNTY IN THE AMOUNT OF$ 150,500 (ONE 

HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND AND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS). 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-37  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF DECEMBER 1, 2015, 

THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2015, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-38  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO RENEW THE AGREEMENT WITH THE STATE OF TENNESSEE ON BEHALF OF 

THE TENNESSEE BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION FOR HAMILTON COUNTY 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES AND HAMILTON COUNTY 

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL 

20 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
SERVICES THROUGHOUT CALENDAR YEAR 2016 IN SUPPORT AND 

DEVELOPMENT OF SOFTWARE FOR THE TENNESSEE BUREAU OF 

INVESTIGATION NOT TO EXCEED $275,000, AND TO AMEND THE GENERAL 

FUND REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGETS BY $275,000. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-39  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN AN AMENDMENT TO THE CONTINUATION GRANT-IN-AID 

CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH INCREASING IT 

FROM $371,300.00 TO $435,897.00 TO SUPPORT THE DELIVERY OF PUBLIC 

HEALTH SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2015 - JUNE 30, 2016. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-40  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN A CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT 

OF HEALTH AND HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT, FOR THE TIME PERIOD APRIL 1, 2016 - MARCH 31, 2017 IN AN 

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $199,500.00 TO SUPPORT THE MEDICAL CASE 

MANAGEMENT OF PERSONS INFECTED WITH HIV/AIDS IN HAMILTON COUNTY. 

 

 

21 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 116-41  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN AN AMENDMENT CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO ACCEPT A ONE TIME AMOUNT OF $25,000.00 TO 

EXPAND THE INFANT MORTALITY FIMR PROGRAM TO PROMOTE 17-

HYDROXYPROGESTERONE (17P) AMONG ELIGIBLE PREGNANT WOMEN IN THE 

COMMUNITY TO PREVENT PREMATURE BIRTHS FOR THE TIME PERIOD FROM 

FEBRUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2016 IN THE AMOUNT OF $25,000.00 

AND CONTINUE TO PROVIDE FOR THE COORDINATION OF FETAL INFANT 

MORTALITY REVIEW AND COMMUNITY INFANT MORTALITY REDUCTION 

SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH'S GUIDELINES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 116-42  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN A LEASE AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $9,445.00 ANNUALLY WITH 

CHATTANOOGA CHURCH MINISTRIES, INC. D.B.A., CHATTANOOGA 

COMMUNITY KITCHEN FOR SPACE FOR USE BY HAMILTON COUNTY, 

TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 

CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT'S HOMELESS 

HEALTH CARE CENTER, FOR THE PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2016 THROUGH 

DECEMBER 31, 2016. 

22 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
 Commissioner Boyd provided details regarding Resolution No. 116-34 and stated 

that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-34. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Boyd provided details regarding Resolution No. 116-35 and stated 

that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-35. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

23 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Boyd provided details regarding Resolution No. 116-36 and stated 

that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-36. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Boyd provided details regarding Resolution No. 116-37 and stated 

that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-37. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

24 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Boyd provided details regarding Resolution No. 116-38 and stated 

that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-38. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Boyd provided details regarding Resolution Nos. 116-39 and 116-

40 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 116-39 and 116-40. The foregoing Resolutions were 

25 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Boyd provided details regarding Resolution No. 116-41 and stated 

that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-41. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Commissioner Boyd provided details regarding Resolution No. 116-42 and stated 

that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

26 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 116-42. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission. 

 

Members of the Commission, Mayor Coppinger, Attorney Taylor, and County 

Clerk Knowles congratulated Administrator of Human Services Don Allen and Director 

of Maintenance Worth Lillard on their retirement. They were thanked for their hard work 

and dedication to Hamilton County during their 37 years of service.  Mayor Coppinger 

announced that there would be a reception in the 2nd floor rotunda immediately following 

today’s  meeting.  

 

27 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
Commissioner Mackey encouraged members of the Commission to work 

together with the City Council and the School Board to achieve their goals of 

development and advancement in Hamilton County, particularly during adversarial 

times. He encouraged prayer and healing in the wake of the alleged assault and rape of 

an Ooltewah High School freshman by his basketball teammates on Dec. 22, 2015.  

 

Commissioner Graham spoke at length about the proposed Bridge Retirement 

Plan (BRP) for the Sheriff’s Department. He noted his concerns about a potential 

property tax increase if current spending and growth habits are not addressed. He 

encouraged the Sheriff’s Office to hold-off on bringing a resolution for the Bridge Plan 

before the Commission until the budget has been thoroughly discussed. Commissioner 

Graham added that he would prefer discussion of an alternative plan that would be 

similar in cost, and benefit all certified officers.  

 

Commissioner Boyd announced that a community meeting will take place at the 

East Ridge Community Center on February 9th at 6:30 pm concerning the Water & 

Wastewater Treatment Authority (WWTA). He encouraged members of the Commission 

to review a recent audit of the County’s Interlocal agreement (Res. No. 902-57) with the 

City of Chattanooga relative to the collection of the City Hotel Motel Tax, which has not 

been updated in 14 years. He thanked County Auditor Bill McGriff for his work on the 

audit.  

 

28 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
 Commissioner Boyd also followed up on a report he prepared regarding the 

shared sales tax plan. He thanked Mayor Coppinger and his staff for bringing the topic 

up for discussion. He noted that his findings are available to the Commission, the 

media, and the public.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks announced the presentation for the three cadets from 

Soddy Daisy High School JROTC would be rescheduled for a later date due to 

inclement weather. He also commented on the Sheriff’s Office Bridge Retirement Plan 

and reported that he has spoken to many officers who are in support of the plan. He 

added that the main reason the Bridge Plan was enacted across the state is to allow 

officers that are reaching retirement age to come off patrol. He encouraged Sheriff 

Hammond to finish polling his department and bring the results before the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Smedley also spoke regarding the Bridge Retirement Plan. She 

added that she will do everything she can to ensure the officers are taken care of. She 

also spoke about the alleged assault and rape of an Ooltewah High School student. It 

was noted that she has received many calls from people across the county concerned 

with how the district is handling this situation. 

 

Attorney Taylor responded to Commissioner Smedley’s concerns. He noted that 

the County Commission can send individual prayers and show concern, but as an 

29 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
official body they have no oversight or control of the Hamilton County Board of 

Education, other than appropriation of funding as requested by the Board.  

 

Commissioner Beck spoke about his concerns with the current Board of 

Education’s leadership. He noted that several issues regarding unequal spending on 

schools in Districts 4 and 5, failing scores, etc. have been brought to the attention of the 

School Board with no response. He added that his hope is the School Board will no 

longer be silent on these issues. Commissioner Beck also spoke about the Sheriff’s 

Office Bridge Retirement Plan. He reported that he would not be supporting the current 

plan because of its exclusion of some uniformed officers (including security officers, 

jailors, and park rangers).  

 

Mayor Coppinger thanked Sheriff Hammond and Captain Triplett for their 

presentations and information they have provided during the meetings regarding the 

Bridge Retirement Plan. Mayor Coppinger also thanked members of the Commission 

that attended yesterday’s meeting regarding the Health Insurance contract for Hamilton 

County employees.  

 

Chairman Bankston sent his prayers to those involved in the situation at 

Ooltewah High School. He noted that the School Board had a closed session last night 

to discuss a plan of action. He encouraged everyone to continue to pray for those 

involved.  

30 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
JANUARY 20, 2016 

 
DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

 There being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, January 27, 2016 at 9:30 AM. 

 

       

      Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

Approved: 

   

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials 

31 

 















































































No. 216-1 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, AND OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS. 

   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS” have taken the oath of office. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2.  That the persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 

 COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public are 
 hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths therefor are 
 approved as taken; and 



 

 

 
3. That the persons named on the listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFFS” are accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and  
 

 4. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 

























No. 216-2 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO DECREASE THE EXPENDITURE BUDGET, FOR THE JUVENILE 
COURT JUDGE, BY $32,369.00 AND INCREASE THE EXPENDITURE BUDGET FOR 
THE SHERIFF BY $32,369.00. 
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff currently provides three (3) security personnel at the Juvenile Court, 

and the Juvenile Court is seeking one (1) additional deputy for security at the 
Juvenile Court; and 

 
WHEREAS, said security is deemed necessary for the welfare of the Juvenile Court 

personnel, and the public; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Juvenile Court and the Sheriff have agreed, that it would be in the best 

interest of the County, to transfer the security position currently employed by 
the Juvenile Court to the Sheriff; 

 
WHEREAS, the security position, currently funded by the Juvenile Court, is included in the 

fiscal year 2016 budget at a remaining balance, included employee benefits, of 
$32,369.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to decrease the budget for the Juvenile Court Judge, and increase 

the budget for the Sheriff to account for this transfer. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the fiscal year 2016 expenditure budget, for the Juvenile Court Judge, be decreased by 
$32,369.00, and the expenditure budget for the Sheriff be increased by $32,369.00. 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 



CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

February 3, 2016 
Date 



No. 216-3 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE SCHOOLS FEDERAL PROJECTS FUND BUDGET 
BY ADDING $2,969,406 TO THE FY 2015-2016 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE 
BUDGET; TO AMEND THE SELF-FUNDED PROJECTS FUND BUDGET BY ADDING 
$683,027 TO THE FY 2015-2016 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGET; TO 
AMEND THE GENERAL PURPOSE FUND BUDGET BY ADDING $2,634,810 TO THE 
FY 2015-2016 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGET 

WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education has additional carryover funds of 
$3,540,436 and a reduction in estimated current revenue of $571,030 from 
various state and federal agencies, and desires to use it for the designated 
purposes; and, 

WHEREAS,   the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of a self-funded 
budget amendment appropriating fund balance of $264,284 and setting forth 
additional revenue from various non-federal agencies or donations totaling 
$418,743; and,  

WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of a general 
purpose operating budget amendment appropriating fund balance of $997,765 
and setting forth additional revenue of $1,637,045; and, 

WHEREAS,    the Hamilton County Board of Education must seek approval of budget 
amendment setting forth additional revenue and expenses and transfers of 
expenditures from one category to another; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

That the county school federal projects fund be hereby amended by adding $2,969,406 for the 
following items: 



Source of Funds                                                                  Amount 
Deferred Revenue         $     200,000 
State Revenue            33,209 
Federal Thru State             2,724,609 
Direct Federal                        (135,700) 
Other Government & Citizen Groups              147,288 
Total           $  2,969,406 
 
Use of Funds 
Regular Instruction                                                                            $     929,300 
Special Education Instruction                 22,379 
Vocational Instruction                       716 
Other Student Support                    313,983 
Regular Instruction Support            1,397,197 
Special Education Support               187,217 
Vocational Support                     2,505 
Transportation                                                                    81,390 
Community Services                    1,732 
Indirect Costs                                                                                   32,987  
Total                                                                   $  2,969,406 
 
That the county school self-funded projects fund be hereby amended by adding $683,027 for 
the following items: 
 
Source of Funds 
Restricted for Education Fund Balance       $     264,284 
Charges for Current Services               314,096 
Other Local Revenues                104,647 
Total                      $     683,027
  
Use of Funds 
Regular Instruction                    $     126,764 
Special Education Instruction                      600 
Health Services                           10,000 
Other Student Support                 23,056 
Regular Instruction Support                         13,639 
Board of Education                130,245 
Operation of Plant                  85,789 
Maintenance of Plant                    6,874 
Community Services                285,781 
Indirect Costs                        279 
Total                                                    $     683,027 



 

 

 
That the county general purpose school fund be hereby amended by adding $2,634,810 for the 
following items: 
 
Source of Funds 
Assigned Fund Balance        $     215,000 
Unassigned Fund Balance               782,765 
Local Taxes              1,000,000 
Licenses & Permits               (12,500) 
Charges for Current Services                  17,883 
State Education Funds               631,662 
Total           $  2,634,810 
    
Use of Funds  
Regular Instruction         $     767,697 
Special Education Instruction               297,121 
Vocational Education Instruction           (202,035) 
Attendance                                                                                                                   (18,771) 
Health Services                  74,068 
Other Student Support                            77,938 
Regular Instruction Support                                                                                                58,689 
Special Education Support                (4,814) 
Vocational Education Support             (11,481) 
Board of Education                       508 
Director of Schools                    2,394 
Office of Principal                337,653 
Fiscal Services                                                                                                                     28,795 
Human Resources Services                   3,125 
Operation of Plant                           190,740 
Maintenance of Plant                223,877 
Central and Other                426,300 
Community Services                   33,006 
Capital Outlay                   50,000 
Transfers                  300,000  
Total           $ 2,634,810 
 
    
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 















No. 216-4 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO BIRCHWOOD REGIONAL CENTRE IN 
THE AMOUNT OF FIVE THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($5,900.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Chester Bankston has expressed a desire to allocate Five Thousand Three 

Hundred Eighty Dollars ($5,380.00) from General Fund discretionary monies and Five 
Hundred Twenty Dollars ($520.00) from General Fund travel discretionary monies (for a 
total amount of Five Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars ($5,900.00) to Birchwood 
Regional Centre to assist with the purchase of office supplies; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Five Thousand Three Hundred Eighty Dollars ($5,380.00) from General Fund discretionary 
monies and Five Hundred Twenty Dollars ($520.00) from General Fund travel discretionary monies, 
for a total amount of Five Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars ($5,900.00), be appropriated to Birchwood 
Regional Centre to assist with the purchase of office supplies. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 



 

 

the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 

organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 













No. 216-5 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO SODDY DAISY VIETNAM VETERANS 
FOUNDATION IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($500.00) FROM GENERAL 
FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT ONE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Randy Fairbanks has expressed a desire to allocate Five Hundred Dollars 

($500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Soddy Daisy Vietnam Veterans 
Foundation to assist with the purchase of a bugle; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Soddy Daisy Vietnam Veterans Foundation to assist with the purchase of a bugle. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 









No. 216-6 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO COLLEGEDALE TOMORROW 
FOUNDATION, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT SEVEN. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Sabrena Smedley has expressed a desire to allocate Ten Thousand Dollars 

($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Collegedale Tomorrow 
Foundation, Inc., to assist with project development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Collegedale Tomorrow Foundation, Inc., to assist with project development. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 









No. 216-7 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO FRONT PORCH ALLIANCE IN THE 
AMOUNT OF FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Five Thousand Dollars 

($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Front Porch Alliance to assist 
with youth programming; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Front Porch Alliance to assist with youth programming. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 







No. 216-8 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO A NIGHT TO REMEMBER, INC., IN THE 
AMOUNT OF THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Three Thousand 

Dollars ($3,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to A Night to Remember, 
Inc., to assist with their scholarship fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
A Night to Remember, Inc., to assist with their scholarship fund. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 







No. 216-9 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO PARTNERSHIP FOR FAMILIES, 
CHILDREN AND ADULTS, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED 
DOLLARS ($2,500.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED 
TO DISTRICT EIGHT. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Tim Boyd has expressed a desire to allocate Two Thousand Five Hundred 

Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Partnership for Families, 
Children and Adults, Inc., to assist with the Deaf Services program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be 
appropriated to Partnership for Families, Children and Adults, Inc., to assist with the Deaf Services 
program. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 



 

 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 

organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 









No. 216-10 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF SOUTHEASTERN COMMUNICATIONS 
SERVICES, INC. FOR INSTALLATION, TERMINATION, TESTING, PROGRAMMING AND 
CERTIFICATION OF A BOGEN QUANTUM INTERCOM SYSTEM AT GANNS MIDDLE 
VALLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL AMOUNTING TO $30,194.45 FOR THE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for the  installation, 

termination, testing, programming and certification of a Bogen Quantum Intercom 
System for Ganns Middle Valley Elementary School for the Telecommunications 
Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Southeastern Communications Services, Inc. amounting to $30,194.45, 

with a unit price per drop of $97.50, was the only bid received, but said bid is deemed 
reasonable; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Southeastern Communications Services, Inc. for installation, termination, testing, 
programming and certification of a Bogen Quantum Intercom System for Ganns Middle Valley 
Elementary School for the Telecommunications Department amounting to $30,194.45 is hereby 
accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM  
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 















































































No. 216-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL OF CIGNA HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE 
COMPANY TO PROVIDE GROUP HEALTH PLAN ADMINISTRATION FOR HAMILTON 
COUNTY AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received in response to public advertisement for a three (3) year 

contract, with the option to renew under the same terms and conditions for three (3) 
additional mutually agreeable one (1) year periods,  to administer the County’s group 
medical insurance plan; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Human Resources Department and the County’s employee benefit consultant have 

evaluated these proposals based on the criteria listed in the Request for Proposals; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposal offered from CIGNA Health and Life Insurance Company appears to be in 

the best interest of Hamilton County, and; 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds available in the self-insurance fund. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal from CIGNA Health and Life Insurance Company to administer the County’s group 
medical insurance plan is hereby accepted, said proposal being the best proposal received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contract necessary to implement this resolution.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 











No. 216-12 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL OF BB&T/HUFFAKER INSURANCE TO 
PROVIDE UMBRELLA LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR HAMILTON COUNTY AND 
TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 
WHEREAS,  proposals were received in response to public advertisement for a one (1) year 

agreement, beginning February 12, 2016, with the option to renew for four (4) 
additional one (1) year terms, for umbrella liability insurance; and, 

  
WHEREAS,  this coverage shall be in the County’s best interest to ensure adequate coverage against 

large unforeseen losses, and more specifically for losses for which the County has no 
sovereign immunity protection; and, 

 
WHEREAS, this insurance is not intended to increase or compromise Hamilton County 

Government’s sovereign immunity limits and protection as applicable; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the quote from BB&T/Huffaker Insurance, as broker, with limits of $2M/$4M is 

deemed the best overall at the lowest premium cost and most efficient placement of 
coverage with a first-year premium of $158,248.00; and, 

 
WHEREAS, this proposal will double the County’s limits over expiring coverage for only $2,385.00 

more than expiring premium; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this placement is intended to be with BB&T/Huffaker Insurance and will allow them to 

seek alternate quotes throughout the approved contract  term should premium renewals 
be unacceptable; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds available in the liability insurance fund. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal from BB&T/Huffaker Insurance to provide Umbrella Liability Insurance for a period 



 

 

of one year, with an option to renew for four (4) additional one (1) year terms, is hereby accepted, said 
proposal being the best proposal received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 
Click here to enter text. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 









No. 216-13 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2004 INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
HAMILTON COUNTY AND THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
RELATIVE TO THE CONSTRUCTION OF SCHOOL FACILITIES; AUTHORIZING THE 
PRESENTATION OF SAID AMENDED AGREEMENT TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY 
BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL; AND AUTHORIZING 
THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE SAID AMENDED AGREEMENT WHEN, AND IF, 
SO APPROVED. 
 

WHEREAS,   by previous Interlocal Agreement entered into by and between Hamilton 
County (“County”) and the Hamilton County Board of Education 
(“Board”), dated May, 2004, certain procedures were set in place for 
recommendations by the Board as to the construction and/or renovation 
of public educational facilities within Hamilton County and the 
County’s funding thereof; and  

 
WHEREAS,  said Agreement also established a method for the selection of architects 

and/or engineers to provide their professional assistance in the designing 
and construction phases of said projects; and  

 
WHEREAS,  this county legislative body feels that said Agreement needs to be 

amended as to the process to be used in the selection of architects and/or 
engineers for future projects involving educational facilities in Hamilton 
County (as reflected in the attached proposed Amended Interlocal 
Agreement); and  

 
WHEREAS,  upon this county legislative body’s approval of the attached, the same 

should be presented to the Board for its consideration, approval, and 
signing by the appropriate officials of the parties hereto for subsequent 
adherence. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the attached Amended Interlocal Agreement between Hamilton County and the Hamilton 



 

 

County Board of Education is approved, and shall be presented to the Hamilton County Board 
of Education for its consideration and approval; and that upon said Board’s approval of the 
same, the County Mayor and Chairman of the County Commission are hereby authorized to 
execute said Amended Agreement along with the authorized representative(s) of the Hamilton 
County Board of Education. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 



AMENDED INTER-LOCAL AGREEMENT AMONG HAMILTON COUNTY  
BOARD OF EDUCATION AND HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 

THIS INTER-LOCAL AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement") 
amends that Agreement dated May, 2004, as entered into by and between the HAMILTON 
COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION acting through its Director of Schools (hereinafter 
referred to as "Board"), and HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, acting through its County 
Mayor (hereinafter referred to as "County"). 

WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated §§ 5-1-113, 5-1-114 and 12-9-101 et seq. 
provide for inter-local agreements and inter-local cooperation; and 

WHEREAS, the County is authorized by law to levy taxes, issue general obligation 
bonds and to appropriate funds necessary to finance school projects which are approved by the 
Board; and 

WHEREAS, the Board is authorized by Title 49 of the Tennessee Code Annotated to be 
responsible for school location, design and construction; and 

WHEREAS, the statutory scheme in Tennessee contemplates reasonable cooperation 
between the County, as the revenue raising agency, and the Board, as the revenue spending 
agency; and both parties recognize that without such coordination there would be great confusion 
in the fiscal affairs of the County. 

WHEREAS, the intent of this amended Agreement is to establish a more recommended 
method for future school construction projects under which the County and Board will work 
together to assure the best quality schools for the lowest cost possible. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and the mutual obligations 
assumed herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. General Purpose. The general purpose of this Agreement is to provide for a plan for 
future school construction projects under which the County and Board will work together to 
assure the best quality schools for the lowest possible price. 

2. Definition of Terms. Pursuant to this Agreement, the terms defined in this article shall 
have the meanings given them. 

a. County. Hamilton County, a constitutional county of the State of Tennessee. 
b. Board. The Hamilton County Board of Education. 
c.  School Projects. School Projects shall mean new construction and/or  

                  renovation of school facilities which are funded by bonds issued by the 
County. 

3. Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for three (3) years beginning with the 
date of January 1, 2016, and ending December 31, 2019. 



) 

4 

4. Renewal. After the initial three-year term, this Agreement shall be automatically 
renewed on an annual basis unless either party provides written notice of non-renewal one 
hundred and twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of the current term. 

5. Right to Terminate. Notwithstanding the provisions defining the Term and Renewal 
of this Agreement, either party may terminate this Agreement upon giving a one hundred and 
twenty (120) day notice to the other party. 

6. The Plan: 

a. Project Selection. During the term of this Agreement, the Board will approve a 
list of one or more School Projects for submission to the County for funding approval. 

b. Project Funding. Upon presentation of the approved list of School Projects by 
the Board to the County, the County will then vote on whether, and to what extent, 
funding for said School Projects should be approved. In the event, the County votes to 
approve funding for some or all of the School Projects, the parties will establish a 
Review Committee which shall proceed to the selection of architects and/or engineers. 

c. Review Committee. The Review Committee will consist of: 

i. One (1) Hamilton County Board member from the Commission 
District wherein the project(s) is located; 

ii. One (1) Hamilton County Commissioner from the Commission 
District wherein the project(s) is located; 

iii. The HCDE Assistant Superintendent of Auxiliary Services; 

iv. The Hamilton County Engineer; 

v. The Director of Public Works for Hamilton County; and 
 
vi. One {1) member of public to be designated by the Board Chairman. 
 
d. Selection Committee. The Selection Committee will consist of: 
 
i. One (1) Hamilton County Board Member from the Commission 

District wherein the project(s) is located; 
   
ii. One (1) Hamilton County Commissioner from the Commission 

District wherein the project(s) is located; 
 
iii. The Hamilton County Mayor; and  
 



 

iv. The Hamilton County Department of Education Superintendent.  
 
For School Projects that are system-wide and/or extend into more than one District, the County 
Commissioner on the Review Committee will be appointed by the Chairman of the Commission 
and the Board member will be appointed by the Chairman of the Board. 

 
A Review Committee will be convened with respect to each School Project for the purpose of 
reviewing proposals from interested architectural/engineering firms and then will select five 
firms to interview.  The Review Committee on each project will then select a maximum of three 
(3) firms to recommend as properly qualified to perform the work. The list of recommendations 
will then be forwarded to the Selection Committee for consideration. If the School Project is 
system-wide and/or extends into more than one District, only one Review Committee will be 
convened. 

 
e. Selection Committee Recommendation. Upon receipt of the list of 

recommended firm(s) from the Review Committee(s), the Selection Committee will 
meet and select (or confirm) one (1) firm as their recommendation on who should 
perform the work on each project. 
 

f. Selection of Architect/Engineer.  The recommendation of the County Mayor 
and the Director of Schools will then be submitted to the Board for approval and the 
County for funding approval. Upon approval, contracts will be prepared by the County 
Attorney and the Hamilton County Department of Education ("HCDE") Assistant 
Superintendent of Auxiliary Services between the architect/engineer and the County and 
the Board. The County Mayor and Director of Schools are authorized to execute the 
contract(s) on behalf of the County and Board, respectively. 

g. Contractor Selection. After selection of the architect/engineer, a bid package 
(including project plans) shall be prepared by the architect/engineer in cooperation with 
the HCDE Assistant Superintendent of Auxiliary Services. The School Project plans are 
to be approved by the Board prior to submission for bidding. The lowest and most 
responsive bid by a general contractor will then be submitted to the Board for approval 
and the County for funding approval. Upon approval, the contract(s) will be prepared by 
the County Attorney and the HCDE Assistant Superintendent of Auxiliary Services 
between the contractor, the County and the Board. The County Mayor and Director of 
Schools are authorized to execute the contract(s) on behalf of the County and the Board, 
respectively. 

h. Value Engineering.  The HCDE Assistant Superintendent of Auxiliary 
Services shall work with the selected architect/engineer and contractor to determine 
whether "value engineering" various project components is possible in an effort to save 
costs. The items shall be presented to the Board for approval and the County for funding 
approval. 

i.  Change Orders.  All change orders shall be submitted to the Board for 
approval and then to the County for funding approval. 

 



j. Construction Progress.  The HCDE Assistant Superintendent of Auxiliary 
Services, or other Hamilton County Education Department staff as deemed appropriate, 
shall inform the County and the Board of the progress of the construction on School 
Projects on a regular basis. 

k. Payment of Invoices. Invoices or draw requests for payment on School Projects 
shall be signed as approved by the HCDE Assistant Superintendent of Auxiliary and 
forwarded to the County Finance Office for payment. 

l. Contract Disputes. The County and Board designate the HCDE Assistant 
Superintendent of Auxiliary Services as their authorized representative to resolve any 
contract disputes which do not adversely impact the Project funding or overall design. If 
litigation arises from a contract dispute, the County Attorney is authorized to represent 
the County and the Board. Any settlement of litigation is subject to approval by the 
County and the Board. 

m. The Board and County agree to follow the Disadvantaged Business Enterprises 
Utilization Guidelines, as reflected in Resolution No. 701-40 of the Hamilton County 
Board of Commissioners, with respect to all contracts on School Projects contemplated 
by this Agreement. 

           IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their respective names to be affixed by 
their duly authorized officers on the ______ day of December 2015. 

[Signatures on the following page] 



 
 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________    
 Jim Coppinger, County Mayor 
 
 
HAMILTON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION  
 
 
 
By:   __________________________    
  
 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
By:        
 Chairman 
 
 
HAMILTON COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________________    
 Chairman 



No. 216-14 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
February 3, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON 
COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE 
CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO PROVIDE FAMILY 
PLANNING SERVICES TO RESIDENTS OF HAMILTON COUNTY AND INCREASE THE 
EXPENSE AND REVENUE BUDGET BY $18,400.00. 
 
WHEREAS, contraceptive use reduces maternal mortality and improves women’s and 

children’s health by preventing unplanned and high-risk pregnancies; and, 
 
WHEREAS, some contraceptives also improve women’s health by reducing the likelihood 

of disease transmission and protecting against certain cancers and health 
problems; and  

  
WHEREAS, allowing families to choose the timing of pregnancies and subsequent children 

contributes to the health and financial well-being of the family unit; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Health Department has an active and effective Family 

Planning program; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the Tennessee Department of Health has identified  funding for the provision 

of these services in Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract amendment for the 
provision of family planning services to the residents of Hamilton County and increase 
the Expense and Revenue budget by $18,400.00. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 



































No. 216-15 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 

February 3, 2016 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 

 
A RESOLUTION ENDORSING THE PROPOSAL TO NAME A UNITED STATES NAVAL 

SHIP “THE USS CHATTANOOGA” IN HONOR OF THE HEROIC EFFORTS OF THOSE 

INVOLVED IN THE CHATTANOOGA INCIDENT OF JULY 16, 2015. 
 

WHEREAS,  many Chattanoogans displayed great courage and demonstrated heroic valor in  

                          responding to the senseless terrorist-influenced attacks that occurred in  

                          Chattanooga, Hamilton County, Tennessee, on July 16, 2015; and  
 

WHEREAS,  such acts of valor deserve world-wide recognition; and  
 

WHEREAS,  there presently exists a proposal that the United States Navy name a future ship    

                          “The USS Chattanooga” in honor of the heroic efforts of all those involved in  

                          responding to said incident; and  
 

WHEREAS,  this county legislative body and County Mayor feel that such a dedication     

                          would greatly honor the citizens of this community. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 

SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That Hamilton County does hereby express its approval of the naming of a United 

States Navy ship “The USS Chattanooga”, in honor of the valor shown by so many to 

the terrorist-inspired attack that occurred in Chattanooga, Hamilton County, 

Tennessee, on July 16, 2015. 
 

Be it further resolved that the County Clerk forward a copy of this Resolution to each 

member of the United States Congress representing any portion of Chattanooga, 

Hamilton County, Tennessee, for proper transmittal to the appropriate officials of the 

United States Navy charged with the naming of naval ships. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 

AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 

☐  

Rejected: 
 

☐ 
 

 

 

Approved: 

 

☐ 

County Clerk 

 

 

Vetoed: 
 

☐ 

 

  County Mayor 

 

February 3, 2016 

  
Date 

 


	2-3-16 Public Agenda - Revised
	216-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - January 13, 2016 _2077_01-13-16 Recessed
	216-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - January 13, 2016 _2078_01-13-16 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	216-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - January 20, 2016 _2082_01-20-16 Regular
	216-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report - December 2015_2066_December 2015 Monthly
	216-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report - December 2015_2067_December 2015 Excess Fee
	216-_S_Report_Juvenile Court Clerk's Report - October and November 2015_2068_Juvenile Court Clerk Report October and November 2015
	216-_S_Report_Report of Investment Activity_2076_1235_001
	216-_S_Report_Reports Fee Office Reports_2080_1237_001
	216-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_2081_02-03-16
	216-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_2081_02-03-16A
	216-2_R_Sam Mairs_Resolution to Transfer Funds for Sheriff Security Officer 2016_2079_RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER FUNDS FOR SHERIFF SECURITY OFFICER 2016
	216-3_R_Christie Jordan_FY2016 Hamilton County Department of Education Budget Amendments_2085_BOE Budget Amendments
	216-3_S_Christie Jordan_FY2016 Hamilton County Department of Education Budget Amendments_2085_1241_001
	216-4_R_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for Birchwood Regional Centre_2064_Comm Bankston Birchwood Reg Ctr
	216-4_S_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for Birchwood Regional Centre_2064_1176_001
	216-5_R_Commissioner Fairbanks_Appropriation for Soddy Daisy Vietnam Veterans Foundation_2070_Comm Fairbanks SD Vietnam Veterans
	216-5_S_Commissioner Fairbanks_Appropriation for Soddy Daisy Vietnam Veterans Foundation_2070_1211_001
	216-6_R_Commissioner Turner-Smedley_Appropriation for Collegedale Tomorrow Foundation Inc_2072_Comm Smedley Collegedale Tomorrow
	216-6_S_Commissioner Turner-Smedley_Appropriation for Collegedale Tomorrow Foundation Inc_2072_1217_001
	216-7_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Front Porch Alliance_2071_Comm Mackey Front Porch All
	216-7_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Front Porch Alliance_2071_1216_001
	216-8_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for A Night To Remember Inc_2074_Comm Mackey A Night to Remember
	216-8_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for A Night To Remember Inc_2074_1232_001
	216-9_R_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for Partnership for Families Children and Adults Inc_2083_Comm Boyd Partnership for Families1
	216-9_S_Commissioner Boyd_Appropriation for Partnership for Families Children and Adults Inc_2083_1238_001
	216-10_R_Bill McGriff_Bogen Quantum Intercom System for Ganns Middle Valley Elementary School_2069_RES. BOGEN FOR GANNS MIDDLE VALLEY
	216-10_S_Bill McGriff_Bogen Quantum Intercom System for Ganns Middle Valley Elementary School_2069_Bogen for Ganns Middle Valley Elementary School
	216-11_R_Alecia Poe_Group Health Plan Administration_2073_RES. GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE
	216-11_S_Alecia Poe_Group Health Plan Administration_2073_RFP for Group Health Plan Administration
	216-12_R_Alecia Poe_Umbrella Liability Insurance Coverage_2084_RES. UMBRELLA LIABILITY INSURANCE
	216-12_S_Alecia Poe_Umbrella Liability Insurance Coverage_2084_Umbrella Liability Insurance
	216-13_R_Rheubin Taylor_Amendment to the 2004 School Board Interlocal Agreeement re school construction_2090_Resolution Amending the 2004 Board of Education Interlocal Agreement
	216-13_S_Rheubin Taylor_Amendment to the 2004 School Board Interlocal Agreeement re school construction_2090_AMENDED INTERLOAL AGREEMENT ON SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
	216-14_R_Becky Barnes_Increase Expense and Revenue budget for Family Planning_2075_Family Planning Resolution Amendment 2017.doc
	216-14_S_Becky Barnes_Increase Expense and Revenue budget for Family Planning_2075_Family Planning Amendment Contract 2017
	216_15_R_Rheubin Taylor_Resolution Endorsing the Naming of a U S Naval Ship

